
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Executive 
Committee 
 
 
 
Mon 22nd Feb 
2010 
7.15 pm (or at the 
adjournment of the 
meeting of the Council) 
 
Council Chamber 
Town Hall 
Redditch 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

Access to Information - Your Rights 
 

The Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 
1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend 
Local Authority meetings 
and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the 
Freedom of Information Act 
2000, has further broadened 
these rights, and limited 
exemptions under the 1985 
Act. 

Your main rights are set out 
below:- 

• Automatic right to attend 
all Council and 
Committee meetings 
unless the business 
would disclose 
confidential or “exempt” 
information. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
agenda and public reports 
at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
minutes of the Council 
and its Committees (or 
summaries of business  

 

undertaken in private) for 
up to six years following a 
meeting. 

• Automatic right to inspect 
lists of background 
papers used in the 
preparation of public 
reports. 

• Access, upon request, to 
the background papers 
on which reports are 
based for a period of up 
to four years from the 
date of the meeting. 

• Access to a public 
register stating the names 
and addresses and 
electoral areas of all 
Councillors with details of 
the membership of all 
Committees etc. 

• A reasonable number of 
copies of agenda and 
reports relating to items to 
be considered in public 
must be made available 
to the public attending 
meetings of the Council 
and its Committees etc. 

• Access to a list specifying 
those powers which the 
Council has delegated to its 
Officers indicating also the 
titles of the Officers 
concerned. 

• Access to a summary of the 
rights of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council and 
its Committees etc. and to 
inspect and copy 
documents. 

• In addition, the public now 
has a right to be present 
when the Council 
determines “Key Decisions” 
unless the business would 
disclose confidential or 
“exempt” information. 

• Unless otherwise stated, all 
items of business before the 
Executive Committee are 
Key Decisions.  

• (Copies of Agenda Lists are 
published in advance of the 
meetings on the Council’s 
Website: 
www.redditchbc.gov.uk 

 
If you have any queries on this Agenda or any of the decisions taken or wish to 

exercise any of the above rights of access to information, please contact  
Ivor Westmore  

Committee Support Services  
 

Town Hall, Walter Stranz Square, Redditch, B98 8AH 
Tel: 01527 64252 (Extn. 3269) Fax: (01527) 65216 

e.mail: ivor.westmore@redditchbc.gov.uk                Minicom: 595528 
 



Welcome to today’s meeting. 

Guidance for the Public 
 
 
Agenda Papers 

The Agenda List at the front 
of the Agenda summarises 
the issues to be discussed 
and is followed by the 
Officers’ full supporting 
Reports. 
 
Chair 

The Chair is responsible for 
the proper conduct of the 
meeting. Generally to one 
side of the Chair is the 
Committee Support Officer 
who gives advice on the 
proper conduct of the 
meeting and ensures that 
the debate and the 
decisions are properly 
recorded.  On the Chair’s 
other side are the relevant 
Council Officers.  The 
Councillors (“Members”) of 
the Committee occupy the 
remaining seats around the 
table. 
 
Running Order 

Items will normally be taken 
in the order printed but, in 
particular circumstances, the 
Chair may agree to vary the 
order. 
 
Refreshments : tea, coffee 
and water are normally 
available at meetings - 
please serve yourself. 
 

 
Decisions 

Decisions at the meeting will 
be taken by the Councillors 
who are the democratically 
elected representatives. 
They are advised by 
Officers who are paid 
professionals and do not 
have a vote. 
 
Members of the Public 

Members of the public may, 
by prior arrangement, speak 
at meetings of the Council or 
its Committees.  Specific 
procedures exist for Appeals 
Hearings or for meetings 
involving Licence or 
Planning Applications.  For 
further information on this 
point, please speak to the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Special Arrangements 

If you have any particular 
needs, please contact the 
Committee Support Officer. 
 
Infra-red devices for the 
hearing impaired are 
available on request at the 
meeting. Other facilities may 
require prior arrangement. 
 
Further Information 

If you require any further 
information, please contact 
the Committee Support 
Officer (see foot of page 
opposite). 

Fire/ Emergency  
instructions 
 
If the alarm is sounded, 
please leave the building 
by the nearest available 
exit – these are clearly 
indicated within all the 
Committee Rooms. 
 
If you discover a fire, 
inform a member of staff 
or operate the nearest 
alarm call point (wall 
mounted red rectangular 
box).  In the event of the 
fire alarm sounding, leave 
the building immediately 
following the fire exit 
signs.  Officers have been 
appointed with 
responsibility to ensure 
that all visitors are 
escorted from the 
building. 
 
Do Not stop to collect 
personal belongings. 
 
Do Not use lifts. 
 
Do Not re-enter the 
building until told to do 
so.  
 
The emergency 
Assembly Area is on 
Walter Stranz Square. 

 
 
 



 
 
 

Declaration of Interests: 
Guidance for Councillors 
 
 
DO I HAVE A “PERSONAL INTEREST” ? 
 
• Where the item relates or is likely to affect your  registered interests 

(what you have declared on the formal Register of Interests) 
OR 
 
• Where a decision in relation to the item might reasonably be regarded as affecting your 

own well-being or financial position, or that of your family, or your close associates more 
than most other people affected by the issue, 

 
you have a personal interest. 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare the existence, and nature, of your interest and stay 
 
• The declaration must relate to specific business being decided - 

a general scattergun approach is not needed 
 
• Exception - where interest arises only because of your membership of another public 

body, there is no need to declare unless you speak on the matter. 
 
• You can vote on the matter. 
 
 
IS IT A “PREJUDICIAL INTEREST” ? 
 
In general only if:- 
 
• It is a personal interest and 
 
• The item affects your financial position (or conveys other benefits), or the position of your 

family, close associates or bodies through which you have a registered interest (or 
relates to the exercise of regulatory functions in relation to these groups) 

 
 and 
 
• A member of public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably believe the 

interest was likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
 
WHAT MUST I DO?  Declare and Withdraw 
 
BUT you may make representations to the meeting before withdrawing, if the public have similar 
rights (such as the right to speak at Planning Committee). 



 
 

 
 
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

 

22nd February 2010 

7.15 pm (or at the adjournment  
of the meeting of the Council) 

Council Chamber Town Hall 

 

Agenda Membership: 

 Cllrs: C Gandy (Chair) 
M Braley (Vice-
Chair) 
P Anderson 
J Brunner 
B Clayton 
 

W Hartnett 
N Hicks 
C MacMillan 
M Shurmer 
 

1. Apologies  To receive the apologies of any Member who is unable to 
attend this meeting. 
  

2. Declarations of Interest  To invite Councillors to declare any interests they may have 
in items on the agenda. 
  

3. Independent 
Remuneration Panel - 
Recommendations  

Chief Executive 

To consider the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel in respect of Members’ Allowances for 
the financial year 2010/11. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 
(No Direct Ward Relevance)  

4. Council Tax Setting  

(Pages 1 - 22)  

Head of Financial 
Revenues and Benefit 
Services 

To consider a report on the setting of the Council Tax, so as 
to enable the Committee to recommend to Council the level 
of Council Tax for 2010/11. 
 
(Report attached) 
 
 
(No Specific Ward Relevance)  

5. Exclusion of the Public  Should it be necessary, in the opinion of the Chief Executive, 
to consider excluding the public from the meeting on the 
grounds that exempt information is likely to be divulged, it 
may be necessary to move the following resolution: 

“that, under S.100 I of the Local Government Act 1972, 
as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following matter(s) on 
the grounds that it/they involve(s) the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in the relevant 
paragraphs (to be specified) of Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) 
of the said Act, as amended.”  

  





  
 

Executive 
Committee 

 No Direct Ward Relevance 

22nd February 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxReport0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

 

SETTING OF THE COUNCIL TAX 2010/11 
 
(Report of the Head of Finance, Revenue and Benefit Services) 
 
1. Summary of Proposals 
 

To enable Members to set the level of Council Tax for 2010/11. 
 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 

 
the recommendations set out in Appendix ‘Part D’ of the report 
be approved. 
 

3. Financial, Legal, Policy, Risk and Climate Change /  
Carbon Management Implications 
 
Financial 
 

3.1 The report details financial implications throughout. 
 
Legal 
 

3.2 The Local Government Finance Act 1992 Chapter 14 provides for 
certain local authorities to levy and collect Council Tax.  Sections 30 
to 38 of the Act specify the calculations required to set the tax. 

 
3.3 Billing Authorities must set the amounts of the tax before 

the 11th of March in the preceding financial year. 
 
3.4 The required calculations and the Council Tax for each property 

band are set out in Parts B and C of the Appendices to the report. 
 
Policy 
 

3.5 No policy implications have been separately identified in this report. 
 
Risk 
 

3.6 The Council will not be complying with its statutory duty as a billing 
authority if it fails to set the amount of Council Tax for Redditch for 
2010/11 before the 11th of March 2010. 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

22nd February 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxReport0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

 Climate Change / Carbon Management  
 

3.7 There are none identified. 
 
Report 
 

4. Background 
 

 This report consolidates the individual Heads of Service General 
Fund revenue estimates for 2010/11 which were presented to the 
Executive Committee during the current cycle of meetings.  The 
report also outlines recommendations for revenue bids agreed by 
Executive on 3rd February 2010. 
 

5. Key Issues 
 

5.1 This report details the action taken to date and the decisions still to 
be taken in each of the following areas: 

 
a) Part A Redditch’s estimated outturn for 2009/10 and 

spending plans for 2010/11. 
 
b) Part B Setting the Council Tax for 2010/11. 
 
c) Part C The Collection Fund. 
 

5.2 Supplementary sheets for any of these areas may be distributed at 
the meeting. 

 
 2010/11 Base Budget 
5.3  
 On the 3rd February the Executive Committee considered the initial 

estimates for 2010/11 together with a number of revenue and capital 
bids for the period 2010/11 to 2012/13.  The Council has a balanced 
budget for 2010/11. The report also outlines recommendations for 
capital and revenue bids agreed by Executive on 3rd February 2010. 
 

 
6. Other Implications 

 
 Asset Management - None identified. 

 
Community Safety - None identified. 
 
Health - None identified. 
 
Human Resources - None identified. 
 
Social Exclusion - None identified. 

Page 2



   
 

Executive 
Committee 

 

 
 

 

22nd February 2010 
 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxReport0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

 
Environment /  - None identified. 
Sustainability 

 
7. Lessons Learnt 

 
As outlined in Part B. 

 
8. Background Papers 

 
Heads of Service Estimated Outturn reports 2009/10. 
Directorates’ Estimates reports 2010/11. 

 Calculation of the Council Tax Base - Council on the 27th of January 
2010. 
Local Government Finance Settlement 2010/11. 
 

9. Consultation 
 
There has been no consultation other than with relevant Borough 
Council Officers. 
 

10. Author of Report 
 
The author of this report is Sam Morgan (Financial Services 
Manager), who can be contacted on extension 3790 (e-mail 
sam.morgan@redditchbc.gov.uk) for more information. 
 

11. Appendices 
 
a) Part A (peach paper) Redditch’s estimated outturn for 

2009/10 and spending plans for 
2010/11. 

 
b) Part B (cream paper) Setting the Council Tax for 2010/11. 
 
c) Part C (pink paper) The Collection Fund. 

 
d) Part D (cream paper) Conclusions / Recommendations. 
 
(NB: The interim versions of the above appendices are all on ivory 
paper …Revised versions of the above will be circulated, on colour 
paper per the above list, in due course when full financial information 
is available.) 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix A 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixA0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED 
OUTTURN FOR 2009/10 AND REVENUE REQUIREMENT FOR 2010/11 

 
4. Background 

 
 Officers have prepared initial budgets for 2010/11 which were 

submitted to Executive Committee on the 3rd February.  These 
estimates have been calculated in line with the budget preparation 
guidelines approved by Executive Committee on the 18th November 
2009.  This part of the process has been completed. 

 
 

5. Key Issues 
 

5.1. The Heads of Service budgets are one element of the Council’s 
General Fund revenue budget.  The remaining elements are 
considered in this report and when brought together, form the overall 
picture of the Council’s spending plans for 2010/11. 

 
Formula Grant and Capping Criteria 

 
5.2 The Formula Grant is simply a means of distributing Government 

grant.   The system takes account of the relative needs of an area 
and the relative ability of council’s areas to raise Council Tax using 
relative needs formulae to calculate grant payments.  Redditch 
Borough Council’s Formula Grant for 2009/10 is £6.458 million.  
Compared to the adjusted Amended Formula Grant for 2008/09 
(adjusted to a comparable basis to the 2009/10 grant), this 
represents an increase of 0.5%. 

 
5.3 The capping powers are set out in Local Government Act 1999.  The 

powers allow the Minister of State to look back over two or more 
years when deciding if increases in the budget requirement are 
excessive.  In addition to in-year capping, the Secretary of State is 
able to set a notional budget requirement to be used for future 
comparisons or to cap the following years’ budget requirement.  
He/she is also able to require authorities to reduce their budgets 
over a number of years. 
 

5.4 No specific guidance has been given as to the level of increase 
which would be considered excessive.  However, there is an 
expectation that increases will not exceed 2.5%. 
 

5.5 The proposed figure in paragraph 5.10 allows for a 1.75% increase 
in the budget requirement.  The average Council Tax will need to 
increase by 2.5% because of increased costs and the reduction in 
the level of Formula Grant. 
 

Page 5



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix A 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixA0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

5.6 Estimated outturn for 2009/10 and Initial Budget 2010/11 – Heads of 
Service Budgets 
 
a) The following table shows net Heads of Service revenue 

budgets as reported to the Executive Committee during the 
current cycle of meetings. 

 

Head of Service 2009/10 
Initial 

Budget  
£’000 

2010/11 
Initial 

Budget 
£’000 

Directors 0.0 0.0 

Head of Financial, Revenues 
& Benefits  

1,736.8 1,803.7 

Head of Legal, Democratic & 
Property 

625.4 615.4 

Head of Strategy & 
Partnerships 

1,586.2 1,547.5 

Head of Environment 

Head of Leisure & Arts 

2,912.1 

3,403.4 

3,041.9 

3,132.5 

Head of Planning & Building 
Control 

966.2 964.3 

Head of Asset and 
Maintenance 

80.9 46.0 

Head of Operations 1,846.0 1,868.2 

Head of Housing & 
Community 

697.6 650.3 

Head of Customer and IT 54.6 67.9 

Head of HR & 
Communications 

123.7 

 

195.8 

 

Total 14,032.9 13,933.5 

 
b) The Heads of Service budgets have been prepared assuming 

no increase in service provision unless previously approved 
by Members. 

 
c) A robust process has been followed in preparing the 

estimates for 2010/11.  The Financial Services Section have, 
in conjunction with budget holders, prepared the estimates 

Page 6



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix A 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixA0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

taking into account all anticipated inflationary increases in 
expenditure and all known sources of additional income.  

 
5.7 Capital Charges 

 
a) The Heads of Service budgets include a charge made in line 

with current accounting practice to reflect the costs of using 
capital assets such as buildings and major items of 
equipment. 

 
b) An adjustment is made to remove these notional charges 

from the budget when the Council Tax is set to prevent these 
costs distorting the level of general fund expenditure.  This 
adjustment is shown in paragraph 5.9 below. 

5.8 Use of balances 
 

The General Fund revenue balances at the 31st of March 2009 
 was £2.131 million.   

 

General Fund balances £’000  £’000 

As at 31 March 2009 2,131.2  

Allocations during the year (2009/10) (153.7) 1,977.5

    

Recommended level at 31 March 2011   750

Available for allocation 2010/11   1,227.5
 

5.9 General Fund Summary 2010/11 
  
 The overall revenue budget can be summarised as follows:- 
 

 £’000 
Expenditure  

Net Heads of Service expenditure (see para. 5.6) 13,933 

Planning Grant 
Area based grant 

(150) 
(104) 

Net Financing charges 226 

Net contingencies/identified savings 
Prior Year VAT adjustment 

(214) 
(346) 

Additional superannuation payments 271 

Provision for bad debts 50 

FRS17  adjustment 227 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 417 

Sub Total 14,310 

Page 7



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix A 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixA0.doc/12.02.10/sc. 

Capital Charges (see para. 5.7) (1,470) 

Net expenditure 12,840 

Add Feckenham Parish Precept 8 

Total Expenditure 12,848 

Resources  

Revenue Support Grant (819) 

Business Rates Pool (5,639) 

Council Tax (5,762) 

Total external funding (Budget Requirement) (see 
Para 5.2) 

12,220 
 

Use of balances 628 

Total Resources 12,848 

 
 

Page 8



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix B 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixB0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

SETTING THE COUNCIL TAX FOR 2010/11 
 

4. Background 
 

 Sections 33 to 36 of the Local Government Act 1992 provide for the 
calculation of a billing authority’s Council Tax in accordance with 
specified formulae. 

 
5. Key Issues 

 
5.1 Budget Requirement 

 
Part A of this report details the Authority’s 2010/11 general Fund 
Budget Requirement.  The Borough Council’s recommended Budget 
Requirement is £12.214 million. 

 
5.2 Feckenham Parish Council Precept 

 
In calculating its Budget Requirement a billing authority has to take 
account of the amount of any precept issued to it for the year 
concerned by a local precepting authority.  Feckenham Parish 
Council has notified the Borough Council that its precept for 2010/11 
will be £8,300.  The total budget requirement for 2010/11 will 
therefore be £12,222,769. 
 

5.3 Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Redistributed Non Domestic 
Rates (NDR) 

 
 The Minister of State has announced that Redditch’s RSG 

entitlement for 2010/1 will be £818,847. 
 
 Local businesses pay rates calculated by multiplying their rateable 

value by a national multiplier (specified by the government).  The 
Council collects the proceeds (as agents of the government) which 
are pooled nationally and redistributed back to local authorities on 
the basis of a fixed amount per head of population.  Redditch’s 
entitlement for 2010/11 has been set at £5,639,079. 

 
5.4 Collection Fund Surplus 

 
 Under Section 97(3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 any 

estimated surplus or deficit on the collection fund at the 31st of 
March 2010 is to be taken into account by the billing authority in 
calculating its Council Tax for the year beginning the 1st of April 
2010.  The surplus at the 31st of March is estimated to be £73,037 
(as calculated in Part C of this report). 

 

Page 9



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix B 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixB0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

5.5 Collection Fund Tax Base 
 

 The Council meeting on the 27th of January 2010 set the Council 
Tax Base for 2010/11 at 27,470.42 Band D equivalent properties for 
the whole of the Borough.  The calculation is reproduced at 
Appendix B1 of Part B for information. 

 
5.6 Calculation of the Borough Council Element of the Council Tax for 

2010/11 
 

 This is prescribed by formulae contained in Sections 33 and 34 of 
the Act.  Appendix B2 of Part B details the results of applying the 
formulae to the above data. 

 
 The average Council Tax for Redditch will be £209.49 as detailed in 

the Appendix subject to any further decisions taken by the 
Committee.  When compared to the 2009/10 tax this represents a 
2.5% increase. 

 
The Budget Requirement has increased by 1.75%, whereas the 
external funding (RSG and redistributed NDR) provided by the 
Government has increased by 0.5%, when compared to the actual 
Formula Grant for 2009/10.  

Page 10



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix B 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixB0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

 
    Appendix A 
REDDITCH BOROUGH COUNCIL TAX BASE 2010/11    
  Band A- Band A Band B Band C Band D 
            
Number of dwellings 0 7,459 11,601 7,137 4,177 
Valuation List changes during year      14 114   
Exempt dwellings 0 -263 -223 -141 -52 
Net disabled relief 12 40 -16 -11 -3 
Number of chargeable dwellings 12 7,236 11,376 7,099 4,122 
          
Number of dwellings entitled to 
25% discount 4 4,238 3,813 1,872 896 
Number of dwellings entitled to 
50% discount 0 90 95 46 28 
Number of dwellings entitled to no 
discount 8 2,908 7,454 5,067 3,198 
Discount deduction 1.00 1,104.50 1,000.75 491.00 238.00 
Net chargeable dwellings 11.00 6,131.50 10,375.25 6,608.00 3,884.00 
Ratio to Band D  5/9 6/9  7/9  8/9 1    
Relevant Amount (Band D 
equivalent) 6.11 4,087.67 8,069.64 5,873.78 3,884.00 
      
  Band E Band F Band G Band H Total 
            
Number of dwellings 3,106 1,117 423 21 35,041 
Valuation List changes during year          0 
Exempt dwellings -37 -10 -5 0 -731 
Net disabled relief -7 -13 2 -4 0 
Number of chargeable dwellings 3,062 1,094 420 17 34,438 
           
Number of dwellings entitled to 
25% discount 424 148 39 1 11,435 
Number of dwellings entitled to 
50% discount 18 10 12 2 301 
Number of dwellings entitled to no 
discount 2,620 936 369 14 22,574 
Discount deduction 115.00 42.00 15.75 1.25 3,009.25 
Net chargeable dwellings 2,947.00 1,052.00 404.25 15.75 31,428.75 
Ratio to Band D 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9   
Relevant Amount (Band D 
equivalent) 3,601.89 1,519.56 673.75 31.50 27,747.90 

  
Collection 
rate   99.00% 

  Tax base     27,470.42 
      

 
 

Page 11



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix B 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixB0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

 
Calculation of the Council Tax 2010/11 

 
Stage 1 - Calculation of tax for Band D assuming no parish area 
(Section 33 Local Government Act 1992) 

 
Formula:  R - P 

        T  
 
  Where: R = Budget Requirement 

 P = Revenue Support Grant, NDR plus less deficit on the 
       collection fund  
  T = Tax base 
 

    £12,222,769 - £6,468,126 
  27,470.42 
 = £209.4851 (Basic Council Tax) 
 

Stage 2 - Calculation of tax for Band D for areas with no parish 
precept (Section 34(2) Local Government Act 1992) 
 
Formula:      B  -   A 

         T 
 

Where: B = Basic Council Tax 
     A = Parish Precepts 
     T = Tax base 
 
  £209.4851  -   £8,300 
                     27, 470.42 
             = £209.1829 

 
Stage 3- Calculation of tax for Band D for areas with parish precept 
(Section 34(3) Local Government Act 1992) 
 

 Formula:      C  +  S 
         TP  
 
  Where: C = Council Tax for areas without parish precept 
     S = Parish Precept 
     TP = Tax base for parish 
 
  £209.1829 +  £8,300 
                      363.54 
                = £232.0140  

Page 12



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix B 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixB0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

Stage 4 - Calculation of tax for valuation bands (Section 36 Local 
Government Act 1992) 

 
Formula:      A   x    N 

            D  
 
Where: A = Council Tax for Band D 

    N = Valuation Band proportion 
     D = Band D proportion 
 

Band Proportion Redditch Feckenham 

A 6/9 £139.46 £154.68 

B 7/9 £162.70 £180.46 

C 8/9 £185.94 £206.23 

D 1 £209.18 £232.01 

E 11/9 £255.67 £283.57 

F 13/9 £302.15 £335.13 

G 15/9 £348.64 £386.69 

H 18/9 £418.37 £464.03 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix C 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixC0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

THE COLLECTION FUND 
 

4. Background 
 
 The Local Government Finance Act 1988 requires each billing 

authority to maintain a Collection Fund.  Throughout the year 
payments and transfers relating to Council Tax and Non Domestic 
Rates are made into and out of the Collection Fund.  The payments 
and transfers are those prescribed by the 1988 Act as amended by 
the 1992 Act and subsequent amendments) including income from 
Council Tax payers and Business Rate payers, Council Tax Benefits 
and payments to precepting authorities. 

 
5. Key issues 
 
5.1 Precepts 

 
a) Worcestershire County Council, West Mercia Police Authority 

and Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority set 
their budgets for 2010/11 in February 2010. 

 
b) They are required to notify the Borough Council of their 

Council Tax requirements (Precepts).  The precepts are 
calculated by apportioning their budget requirements between 
the district councils based on the number of Band D 
equivalent properties.  These charges are included in the 
Council Tax bills issued during March. 

 
c) After taking account of Collection Fund balances Redditch 

taxpayers will pay £XXX million towards the County Council's 
budget requirement.  The County Council's element of the 
Council Tax will be £XXX for a Band D property, an increase 
of £XXX or X.XX% compared to 2009/10. 

 
d) The Police Authority require £X.XXX million from taxpayers in 

Redditch.  The Police have set a Council Tax of £XXX for a 
Band D property, an increase of £X.XX or X.XX % compared 
to 2009/10. 
 

e) The Hereford and Worcester Fire & Rescue Authority require 
£X.XXX million from taxpayers in Redditch.  The Fire 
Authority have set a Council Tax of £X.XX  for a Band D 
property, an increase of £X.XX or X.XX% compared to 
2009/10. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix C 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixC0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

 

Summary of demands on Collection Fund 2010/11 

Precept/demand £’000 

Worcestershire County Council X 

Redditch Borough Council 5,755 

West Mercia Police Authority X 

Hereford and Worcester Fire & Rescue Authority X 

Total demand on Collection Fund X 
 

5.2 Collection Fund balance 
 

a) The Council is required to calculate the estimated 
position on the Collection Fund at the 31st of March 2010.  
Any estimated surplus or deficit arising from Council Tax 
transactions must be apportioned between the County 
Council, Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority, 
the Borough Council and the Police Authority. 

 
b) The estimated Collection Fund balance at 31st of March 2010 

is as follows: 
 

Attributable to: Total 
Surplus 

 £ 

Worcestershire County Council 50,598 

Redditch Borough Council 10,200 

West Mercia Police Authority 8,666 

Hereford and Worcester Fire & Rescue Authority 3,572 

Total Surplus 73,037 
 
 

Page 16



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix D 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixD0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND that 
 
1) the 2010/11 General Fund Revenue estimates as set out in Part 

A of this report be approved; 
 
2) the 2010/11 General Fund Revenue bids and General Fund 

Capital Resources bids together with associated costs as 
recommended at Executive on 3rd February 2010 be approved 
as follows; 

 
  Unavoidable and High Revenue Bids   £279,210 
  High General Fund bids for Capital resources £325,000 
  Associated revenue Expenditure       £6,500 
  Redditch Matters          £6,000 
  Church Hill District Centre      £60,000 
  Repairs and Maintenance – Street Lighting      £6,000 
         
3) it be noted that at its meeting on the 27th of January 2010 

Council calculated the following amounts for the year 2010/11 
in accordance with regulations made under Section 33 (5) of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992: 

 
a) 27,470.42 
 

Being the amount calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Council Tax Base) Regulations 1992, as its Council Tax Base 
for the year; 
 

b)  Feckenham Parish – 363.54 
 

 being the amount calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with regulation 6 of the regulations, as the amount of its 
Council Tax Base for the year for dwellings in those parts of 
its area to which one or more special items relate; 

 
4) the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the 

year 2010/11 in accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992: 

 
a) £X 

 
being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 32 (2) (a) to (e) of 
the Act. 
 
(2010/11 Gross General Fund Expenditure) 

Page 17



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix D 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixD0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

 
b) £X 

 
being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 32 (3) (a) to (c) of 
the Act. 
 
(2010/11 Gross General Fund Income) 

 
c) £12, 222,769 

 
being the amount by which the aggregate at 3 (a) above 
exceeds the aggregate at 3 (b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 32 (4) of the Act as its 
budget requirement for the year; 
 
(2010/11 Net General Fund Expenditure) 

 
d) £6,468,126 

 
being the aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates 
will be payable for the year into its General Fund in respect of 
redistributed Non-domestic Rates, Revenue Support Grant or 
additional grant increased by the amount of the sums which 
the Council estimates will be transferred in the year from its 
Collection Fund to its General Fund in accordance with 
Section 97 (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 
(Council Tax Surplus) and increased by the amount of any 
sum which the Council estimates will be transferred from its 
Collection Fund to its General Fund pursuant to the Collection 
Fund (Community Charges) directions under Section 98 (4) of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1988 made on 7 February 
1994 (Community Charge Surplus). 

 
(RSG + NDR - Deficit on Collection Fund) 

 
e) £209.49 

 
being the amount at 4 (c) above less the amount at 4 (d) 
above, all divided by the amount at 3 (a) above, calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 33 (1) of the Act, as 
the basic amount of Council Tax for the year; 

 
(The average amount Band D properties pay for Redditch 
Borough Council services) 

 

Page 18



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix D 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixD0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

f) £8,300 
 

being the aggregate amount of all special items referred to in 
Section 34 (1) of the Act; 

   
(Feckenham Parish Precept) 

 
g) £209.18 
 

being the amount at 4 (e) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 4 (f) above by the amount at 3 (a) 
above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section34 (2) of the Act, as the basic amount of Council Tax 
for dwellings in those parts of the area to which no special 
item relates. 

 
(The amount Band D properties pay (except within the 
Parish of Feckenham) for Borough Council Services) 

 
h) £232.01 

 
being the amount given by adding to the amount at 4 (g) 
above, the amount of the special item relating to the Parish of 
Feckenham, divided by the amount in 3 (b) above, calculated 
by the Council, in accordance with Section 34 (3) of the Act, 
as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for 
dwellings in the Parish of Feckenham; 

 
(The amount Band D properties pay within the Parish of 
Feckenham for Borough Council Services including the 
Parish Precept) 

i) 
 

Valuation 
Band 

Proportion 
of Band D 
tax paid 

Part of Council’s area 

  Parish of 
Feckenham 

All other parts 
of the Councils 

area 
A 6/9 £154.68 £139.46 
B 7/9 £180.46 £162.70 
C 8/9 £206.23 £185.94 
D 1 £232.01 £209.18 
E 11/9 £283.57 £255.67 
F 13/9 £335.13 £302.15 
G 15/9 £386.69 £348.64 
H 18/9 £464.03 £418.37 

    

Page 19



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix D 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixD0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

 
 being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 4(g) 

and 4(h) above by the number which, in the proportion set out 
in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a 
particular valuation band, divided by the number which in that 
proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band 
D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) 
of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the 
year in respect of categories of dwelling listed in different 
valuation bands; 

 
5) it be noted that, for the year 2010/11, the Worcestershire County 

Council, the West Mercia Police Authority and the Hereford and 
Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority have stated the following 
amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with 
Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each 
of the categories of dwellings shown below: 

 
 

Valuation 
Band 

Proportion 
of Band D 
tax paid 

Precepting Authority 

  Worcestershire 
County Council 

West 
Mercia 
Police 

Authority 

H & W 
Fire & 
Rescue 
Authority 

A 6/9    
B 7/9    
C 8/9    
D 1    
E 11/9    
F 13/9    
G 15/9    
H 18/9    
     

 
6) having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 

4 (I) and 5 above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30 (2) 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the 
following amounts as the amounts of Council Tax for the year 
2010/11 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 

Page 20



   
 

Executive 
Committee  

 

Appendix D 
 

 

22nd February 2010 

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\3\AI00002352\CouncilTaxAppendixD0.doc/22.02.10/sc. 

 
 

Valuation 
Band 

Proportion of 
Band D tax 

paid 

Part of Council’s area 

  Parish of 
Feckenham 

All other parts 
of the Council’s 

area 
A 6/9   
B 7/9   
C 8/9   
D 1   
E 11/9   
F 13/9   
G 15/9   
H 18/9   

 
7) the level of General Fund balances to be utilised in 2010/11 be 

£628,600 (if bids set out in 2 are not approved) 
 or the level of General Fund balances to be utilised in 2010/11 

be £986,310 (if bids in section 2 are approved) 
 
8) the level of the Redditch Borough Council demand on the 

Collection Fund be £5,754,643. 
 

 
Part A (pink paper) Redditch’s estimated outturn for 2009/10 and 

spending plans for 2010/11 
 
 
Part B (cream paper) Setting the Council Tax for 2010/11 
 
 
Part C (pink paper) The Collection Fund. 
 
 
Part D (cream paper) Conclusions / Recommendations. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 21



Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Council Tax Setting
	Council Tax Appendix A
	Council Tax Appendix B
	Council Tax Appendix C
	Council Tax Appendix D


